DRAL REVIEW COMMITTEE
AGENDA

BOROUGH

COUNCIL

TUESDAY 31 OCTOBER 2023 AT 7.30 PM
CONFERENCE ROOM 1 - THE FORUM

The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Membership
Councillor Williams Councillor Pringle
Councillor Anderson Councillor Hannell
Councillor Stevens (Chair) Councillor Taylor

For further information, please contact Corporate & Democratic Support on 01442 228209 or email
member.support@dacorum.gov.uk.

AGENDA

1. MINUTES
No minutes to be agreed.
2, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest.
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
5. REVISED PARLIAMENTARY BOUNDARIES (Pages2-7)
6. POLLING DISTRICT & POLLING PLACE REVIEW (Pages 8 - 14)
7. POLLING PLACE ORDER (Pages 15 - 25)

8. ELECTORAL REVIEW (PRESENTATION)

Page 1 of 1


mailto:member.support@dacorum.gov.uk

f in ¥ (©

www.dacorum.gov.uk

Electoral Review Committee

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

Report for: Electoral Review Committee
Title of report: Revised Parliamentary Boundaries
Date: 31 October 2023

Report on behalf of: | Councillor Symington, Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Commercial Services

Part: I
If Part I, reason: n/a
Appendices: Appendix A: summary of Parliamentary constituencies which Dacorum falls within.

Background papers: | n/a

Glossary of
acronyms and any
other abbreviations

used in this report:

Report Author / Responsible Officer

Mark Brookes, Assistant Director (Legal & Democratic Services)
Michelle Anderson, Electoral Services Manager

= ©

Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 228236 (ext. 2236)

Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 2282230 (ext. 2230)

Corporate Priorities Building strong and vibrant communities
Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery
Wards affected All of Dacorum
Purpose of the report: 1. To note the outcome of the Parliamentary boundary
Review
Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1. To note the outcome of the Parliamentary boundary
Review
Period for post policy/project review: n/a
anp 9

rayca


mailto:Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20E-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20F-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20G-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20H-1/c.aspx

1 Introduction/Background:

The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) has undertaken a review of parliamentary constituency boundaries.
The Commission has published its final recommendations and Orders for the new parliamentary constituency
boundaries will be made by 1 November 2023.

Once the Orders for new parliamentary constituencies have been made, the new boundaries will be used for the
next general election.

If a parliamentary by election is called in the meantime, it would be run on existing boundaries.

The review process was heavily informed by public consultation. The BCE developed and published initial
proposals for constituencies across England. Representations from the public about these proposals were then
taken in writing and at public hearings in each region of England across two rounds of consultation. In light of all
the views expressed about these initial proposals, the BCE then conducted a further round of written consultation
on the revised proposals.

The BCE made a formal final report to the Speaker of the House of Commons in July 2023, recommending any
changes that it believed were appropriate to the distribution, size, shape, name or designation of constituencies
in England.

2 Changes being implemented

One of the large areas for change in Hertfordshire is in the south-western part of the county. The existing north—
south configuration of the constituency runs from Tring, through Berkhamsted, to Rickmansworth. Instead a new
constituency named Harpenden and Berkhamsted, will have an east—west configuration from Tring, through
Berkhamsted, to Harpenden. The constituency also includes the two Borough of Dacorum wards of Watling and

Ashridge.

The transfer of the Borough of Dacorum wards of Watling and Ashridge to the proposed Harpenden and
Berkhamsted constituency from the existing Hemel Hempstead constituency means that, to bring the Hemel
Hempstead constituency within the permitted electorate range, now includes the ward of Bovingdon, Flaunden

and Chipperfield, currently in the existing South West Hertfordshire constituency.

The Hemel Hempstead constituency will no longer include the Kings Langley ward, which is now included in the
amended Three Rivers constituency. While this leaves the Kings Langley ward as the only Borough of Dacorum
ward in a constituency otherwise wholly coterminous with Three Rivers district (known as an orphan ward™), it is
necessary in order to bring the constituency within the electorate range, and unites the village of Kings Langley,

including the train station, in the same constituency.

Updated constituency lists are shown at Appendix A

3 Acting Returning Officer Designations

The Acting Returning Officer designations for the new constituencies (which Dacorum fall within), which will be
created later this year are as follows:

For the proposed new UK parliamentary constituency of Hemel Hempstead County Constituency,
Dacorum Borough Council will provide the Acting Returning Officer

Page 3


https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/2023-review/eastern/initial-proposals-for-new-parliamentary-constituency-boundaries-in-the-eastern-region/page/5/#footnote-10

For the proposed new UK parliamentary constituency of South West Hertfordshire County Constituency,
Three Rivers District Council will provide the Acting Returning Officer.

For the proposed new UK parliamentary constituency of Harpenden and Berkhamsted County Constituency,
St Albans City and District Council will provide the Acting Returning Officer.

4 Consultation

All Dacorum Borough Council staff and electorate via the DBC website. The full review consultation was
conducted by the Boundary Commission for England (BCE)

5 Financial and value for money implications:
The re-alignment of the parliamentary boundaries will not incur any costs other than back office resources.
6 Legal Implications

The Government must turn the recommendations of the BCE (and those of the equivalent Commissions for the
other three parts of the UK) into an ‘Order in Council’ that implements the recommendations. The constituencies
set out in the Order will then be implemented for the next General Election after the date on which the legislation
is approved.

The Polling Place Order will be amended and agreed by Full Council.
7 Risk implications:

Electoral matters require continual review to ensure that the democratic process operates effectively. A failure to
provide polling places within set boundaries would result in huge reputational damage.

8 Equalities, Community Impact and Human Rights:

There are no equalities or community impacts arising directly from this report.

9 Sustainability implications (including climate change, health and wellbeing, community safety)
There are no sustainability implications arising directly from this report.

10 Council infrastructure (including Health and Safety, HR/OD, assets and other resources)

There are no council infrastructure implications arising directly from this report.

11 Conclusions:

All new parliamentary boundaries will be updated by the Electoral Services team ahead of publishing the revised
electoral register on 1 December 2023.

A revised Polling Place Order will be approved by Full Council.

Page 4



APPENDIX A
Harpenden and Berkhamsted CC 71,635

Ward Local Authorities Electorate
Aldbury and Wigginton Dacorum 1,910
Ashridge Dacorum 2177
Berkhamsted Castle Dacorum 4 655
Berkhamsted East Dacorum 4718
Berkhamsted West Dacorum 4 766
Northchurch Dacorum 2,266
Tring Central Dacorum 3,965
Tring East Dacorum 2337
Tring West and Rural Dacorum 4 299
Watling Dacorum 4 406
Harpenden East StAlbans 5517
Harpenden North StAlbans 5,660
Harpenden South St Albans 5,437
Harpenden West St Albans 5,963
Redbourn St Albans 4 846
Sandridge StAlbans 3,734
Wheathampstead StAlbans 4 959

Page 5



Hemel Hempstead CC 70,496

Ward

Adeyfield East

Adeyfield West

Apsley and Corner Hall
Bennetts End

Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield
Boxmoor

Chaulden and Warners End
Gadebridge

Grovehill

Hemel Hempstead Town
Highfield

Leverstock Green

Nash Mills

Woodhall Farm

Local Authorities
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum
Dacorum

Dacorum

Page 6

Electorate
3,907
4110
6,886
4,353
6,596
6,691
6,566
4,020
5,269
4 296
3746
7,032
2,759

4.265



South West Hertfordshire CC 71,552

Ward Local Authorities Electorate
Kings Langley Dacorum 4 052
Abbots Langley & Bedmond Three Rivers 4 973
Carpenders Park Three Rivers 5 056
Chorleywood North & Sarratt Three Rivers 5,841
Chorleywood South & Maple Cross Three Rivers 5793
Dickinsons Three Rivers 5,103
Durrants Three Rivers 5,041
Gade Valley Three Rivers 5,058
Leavesden Three Rivers 5,708
Moor Park & Eastbury Three Rivers 4 613
Oxhey Hall & Hayling Three Rivers 4972
Penn & Mill End Three Rivers 5,129
Rickmansworth Town Three Rivers 5,553
South Oxhey Three Rivers 4 660

Page 7



f in¥ ©

www.dacorum.gov.uk

Electoral Review Committee

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

Report for: Electoral Review Committee
Title of report: Polling District & Polling Place Review
Date: 31 October 2023

Report on behalf of: | Councillor Symington, Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Commercial Services

Part: |
If Part Il, reason: n/a
Appendices: n/a

Background papers: | n/a

Glossary of
acronyms and any
other abbreviations

used in this report:

Report Author / Responsible Officer
Mark Brookes, Assistant Director (Legal & Democratic Services)

Michelle Anderson, Electoral Services Manager
= ©

Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 228236 (ext. 2236)

Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 2282230 (ext. 2230)

Corporate Priorities Building strong and vibrant communities

Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery

Wards affected All of Dacorum

Purpose of the report: 1. To note the outcome of the Polling District & Polling

Place review and the consultation responses.

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1. That the following polling district amendments are

implemented:

Page 8


mailto:Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20E-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20F-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20G-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20H-1/c.aspx

° Polling District BAB (Nash Mills Ward) to move
to Polling District BAA (Nash Mills Ward)

° Nash House to move from polling district AFAA
(Apsley and Corner Hall ward) to move to
Polling district BA (Nash Mills Ward)

2. That the Polling District boundary for ALB is slightly
amended to accommodate the whole of Woodfield
Road in Leverstock Green

3. That the polling station in Chipperfield is relocated
to the Village hall

4. That a new polling place is created at the Hemel
Hempstead Methodist Church to accommodate the
AGBA Boxmoor Polling District

5. That Council note the outcome of the Polling District
& Polling Place Review 2023 and approve the

amended Polling District & Polling Place Order

Period for post policy/project review: Every 5 years

1 Introduction/Background:

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its area into polling districts
and to designate a polling place for each district.

The following definitions may be helpful when reading the report.

e “Polling districts” are geographical electoral areas into which wards and constituencies may be sub-
divided.

e “Polling places” are the buildings or areas designated by the council where electors in a polling district go
to vote in person.

e “Polling stations” are the number of issuing desks in the building or area that is the designated polling
place.

The Electoral Administration Act 2006, as amended, introduced a duty on all local authorities in Great Britain to
review their polling districts and polling places at least once every five years.

The intention of the legislation was reviews would be completed by the January before a UK parliamentary
general election. However, since the repeal of the Fixed Term Parliaments Act 2011, there is no longer any
certainty as to when the next general election will be.

The Dissolution and Calling of Parliament Act 2022 means:

e the UK Parliament can be dissolved by the King on request of the Prime Minister, at any time within the 5
years of the life of the Parliament

e the next general election must take place before Tuesday 28 January 2025, but it could happen at any
point before then

These issues mean it is important that the polling district and places review is carried out as early as possible, so
that Dacorum Borough Council has agreed polling districts and places to be used for the next parliamentary
election [as well as the scheduled Police and Crime Commissioner elections in May 2024] and has a polling
scheme in place which reflects the new constituencies.

2 Consultation responses
» Ward Councillors

Page 9



‘Thank you for your e mail. The proposal seems very sensible, | think this change should be supported.’

> County Councillor

‘The number of people voting in person has been declining for years and the introduction of ID regs will probably
drive more to postal votes.

The small hall has been the venue for decades now and whilst | agree with the suggested points (and well made)
the Small Hall Youth Club is right next to the school, is a decent size and does have a kitchen.

| have never received a complaint about it being too small!

As a consideration to the play group who are the regular weekday user and it’s an all-day use, | wander if
switching to the village Hall would be less disruptive to parents and the nursery provision. The points about
access are true although a one way system is achievable as it has two doors!

| think it is finely balanced and would be happy to support the suggestion, if that is the consensus view. It should
also be born in mind that the village hall will also have to stop all its activities as well.’

> Nash Mills Parish Council

‘NMPC discussed the review last night and determined that they had no comments to add as our venue remains
unchanged’.

> Boxmoor Ward Councillors

It’s much sensible then voters going to Warners end. Thank you for bringing this change.
Thank you for asking us. | have no issue with this proposal which seems sensible and saves money

It is unfortunate that a site cannot be found in the southern part of the ward to spread the accessibility more
evenly. Last time this was looked into, there was talk of using the Catholic Church hall. Did that idea come to
nothing? If there is no alternative, then | suppose the methodist church is the best alternative. (the question

raised here has been responded to)

> Electoral Services

The Electoral Services team have looked through the register and have identified the following anomalies which if
moved, will tidy up the electoral register and streamline the registers required for polling day. This will have no
effect on the electors as they will remain in their existing wards

e 26 Properties in Chambersbury Lane and 4 Properties in Silverthorn Drive in Polling District BAB (Nash
Mills Ward) to move to Polling District BAA (Nash Mills Ward)

Polling District BAB is a small polling district of 30 properties, the properties can be combined with Polling
District BAA as both are within the same ward. As a result polling district BAB can be deleted.

¢ Flats 1-11 Nash House Polling district AFAA (Apsley and Corner Hall ward) to move to Polling district BA
(Nash Mills Ward)
Flats 1-11 Nash House were incorrectly addressed by Royal Mail. They were given the street name of
Dickinson Quay which is in the AFAA polling district Apsley and Corner Hall ward, when the property
clearly sits in the BA (Nash Mills) polling district. The Address Management team undertook a site visit
with a member of the Electoral Services team and liaised with the property developer and Royal Mail and
have changed the street name to Dickinson Square and the properties have been moved to the correct
Nash Mills polling district.

3 Moving a Polling District boundary

Page 10



Three roads across the Nash Mills and Leverstock Green Wards are subject to a boundary line running straight
through the middle of them (shown in blue below). This has resulted in half of the road being in the Leverstock
Green ward and the other half in the Nash Mills ward.

It is therefore suggested that the boundary line is moved from the centre of the streets to behind the row of
houses (shown in red below), which runs along Bunkers Park:

By moving the boundary line (shown above in blue), the following properties would be moved from polling district
BA (Nash Mills) to ALB (Leverstock Green), to join the rest of the street:

Woodfield Drive Woodfield Gardens Bedmond Road
Properties Electorate Properties Electorate Properties Electorate

1 3 1 2 52 1
3 2 2 2 54 4
5 1 3 1

7 1 4 1

9 4 5 1

11 2 6 1

15 2 7 3

2 0 15 3

4 2

6 2

10 19 8 14 2 5

Totals: 20 Properties 38 Electors

Figures as at: 27.9.23

4 Changing a polling station in Chipperfield.
The current polling station used in Chipperfield is the Chipperfield Youth Club.

The current venue is a nursery during the day, which is a small venue with a single door in and out and a very
small kitchen area. There is no immediate parking by the youth club, and electors need to park across the road.

Therefore it has been suggested that we use Chipperfield Village Hall, which is located next door to the Youth
Club. The benefits of this change would include:

e The entrance is flat with 2 double doors therefore highliaccessible

Page 1



There is parking outside the door for approximately 5 cars with cones available to mark disabled parking
spaces and safe parking for the staff

There is a vestibule which is very large, has seating and large public toilets — this could be a space for
tellers that would not interrupt the entrance to the polling station and would be great in inclement
weather

The large hall gives space for the polling staff to set up the area with plenty of space for wheelchairs and
buggies

There is a separate kitchen and toilets that can be set up for staff use only

There are several sets of double doors leading from the main hall should a one-way system need to be
put in place

Along with the 5 parking spaces immediately outside there is also additional parking very close-by which
is nearer than parking across the road

It has been reported that the village hall is under-used by the community, this would be a great way of
showcasing the building to local residents

Using the village hall would mean that there would be no need to disrupt the nursery day, by having to
close due to an election.

Ward Councillors, the relevant County Councillor and the Parish Council have been consulted on this. Any
responses received are listed above.

5

Create a new polling place in Boxmoor Ward

Many years ago an existing polling station was demolished to be rebuilt. Therefore the electors within polling
district AGBA in Boxmoor, were temporarily relocated to a polling station in Warners End Community Centre
(Chaulden & Warners End ward). This affects around 600 electors.

Best practice is to have electors from a polling district voting in a station located in the same ward and not
crossing into a different ward.

Therefore the proposal is to create a new polling place at the Hemel Hempstead Methodist Church on
Northridge Way (in the same location as the previously demolished polling station). The electors within
polling district AGBA, Boxmoor would then be voting within their correct ward of Boxmoor.

The polling station they will be moving from, will continue to be a polling station for electors in the Chaulden
& Warners End ward, however the cost of hire would reduce by around £440

The relevant Ward Councillors have been consulted on this. Any responses received are listed above.

Page 12



Warners End
Community Centre

Warners End Ward

St Francis Parish Hall

Hemel Hempstead
Methodist Church

Boxmeor ward

Camelot Rugby Club

(¢ puright and Datahase Rights 2021. licence No. 100018935
6 Consultation

The Returning Officer; Assistant Director, Legal and Democratic Services, All councillors; Parish Councils, DBC
Consultation website, DBC website

7 Financial and value for money implications:

The provision of Polling Stations for elections is reviewed on a regular basis and the funding is overseen by the
Electoral Commission and the Elections Claims Unit.

8 Legal Implications

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its area into polling districts
and to designate a polling place for each district. This must be reviewed every five years.

9 Risk implications:

Electoral matters require continual review to ensure that the democratic process operates effectively. A failure to
provide polling places would result in huge reputational damage.

10 Equalities, Community Impact and Human Rights:

There are no equalities or community impacts arising directly from this report. Polling stations have been fully
assessed and are deemed fully accessible for all members of the public.

11 Sustainability implications (including climate change, health and wellbeing, community safety)
There are no sustainability implications arising directly from this report.

12 Council infrastructure (including Health and Safety, HR/OD, assets and other resources)
There are no council infrastructure implications arising directly from this report.

13 Conclusions:

Page 13



After consideration, the above recommendations are deemed appropriate amendments to the councils Polling
Districts and Polling places. A revised Polling Place Order will be approved by Full Council.

Page 14



COUNCIL

e N

www.dacorum.gov.uk

Electoral Review Committee

Report for:

Electoral Review Committee

Title of report:

Polling Place Order

Date:

31 October 2023

Report on behalf of:

Councillor Symington, Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Commercial Services

Part:

If Part Il, reason:

n/a

Appendices:

Appendix A — Polling Districts & Polling Places Order

Background papers:

n/a

Glossary of
acronyms and any

other abbreviations

used in this report:

= ©

Report Author / Responsible Officer
Mark Brookes, Assistant Director (Legal & Democratic Services)

Michelle Anderson, Electoral Services Manager

Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 228236 (ext. 2236)

Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk / 01442 2282230 (ext. 2230)

Corporate Priorities

Building strong and vibrant communities

Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery

Wards affected

All of Dacorum

Purpose of the report:

1. To note the updated Polling Districts & Polling

Places Order to Full Council

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s): 1. Torecommend the updated Polling Districts &

Polling Places Order to Full Council

Period for post policy/project review: n/a

Page 15


mailto:Mark.brookes@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:Michelle.anderson@dacorum.gov.uk
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20E-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20F-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20G-1/c.aspx
https://dacorum-mail.co.uk/3QGJ-1BNTK-10QSOQ-UU20H-1/c.aspx

1 Introduction/Background:

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its area into polling districts
and to designate a polling place for each district.

The following definitions may be helpful when reading the report and Appendices.

e “Polling districts” are geographical electoral areas into which wards and constituencies may be sub-
divided.

e “Polling places” are the buildings or areas designated by the council where electors in a polling district go
to vote in person.

e “Polling stations” are the number of issuing desks in the building or area that is the designated polling
place.

The Electoral Administration Act 2006, as amended, introduced a duty on all local authorities in Great Britain to
review their polling districts and polling places at least once every five years.

The intention of the legislation was reviews would be completed by the January before a UK parliamentary
general election. However, since the repeal of the Fixed Term Parliaments Act 2011, there is no longer any
certainty as to when the next general election will be.

The Dissolution and Calling of Parliament Act 2022 means:

e the UK Parliament can be dissolved by the King on request of the Prime Minister, at any time within the 5
years of the life of the Parliament

e the next general election must take place before Tuesday 28 January 2025, but it could happen at any
point before then

These issues mean it is important that the polling district and places review is carried out as early as possible, so
that Dacorum Borough Council has agreed polling districts and places to be used for the next parliamentary
election [as well as the scheduled Police and Crime Commissioner elections in May 2024 and has a polling scheme
in place which reflects the new constituencies.

2. Updated Polling Districts & Polling Places Order

Following the recent Polling District & Polling Place Review and further to the outcome of the Parliamentary
Review, carried out by the Boundary Commission for England, the Polling Districts & Polling Places Order for
Dacorum Borough Council requires updating.

3. Amendments made
A new parliamentary constituency created called Harpenden & Berkhamsted

The Hemel Hempstead and South West Herts constituencies to be amended as per recommendations from the
Boundary Commission for England.

A new polling place is created at Chipperfield Village hall, to replace Chipperfield Youth Club.

A new Polling place is created at Hemel Hempstead Methodist Church, to allow electors in the AGBA (Boxmoor)
polling district to vote within the correct warded area.

The boundary line of the Leverstock Green ward has been amended to include complete roads which had
previously been split with the Nash mills Ward.

To tidy the electoral register in order to combine the following polling districts as set out in the Polling District &
Polling Place review report:

» Polling District BAB (Nash Mills Ward) to move to Polling District BAA (Nash Mills Ward)
> Flats 1-11 Nash House Polling district AFAA (Apsley and Corner Hall ward) to move to Polling district

BA (Nash Mills Ward) Page 16



4 Consultation

The Returning Officer; Assistant Director, Legal and Democratic Services, All councillors; Parish Councils, DBC
Consultation website, DBC website

5 Financial and value for money implications:

The provision of Polling Stations for elections is reviewed on a regular basis and the funding is overseen by the
Electoral Commission and the Elections Claims Unit.

6 Legal Implications

Under the Representation of the People Act 1983, the council has a duty to divide its area into polling districts
and to designate a polling place for each district. This must be reviewed every five years.

7 Risk implications:

Electoral matters require continual review to ensure that the democratic process operates effectively. A failure to
provide polling places would result in huge reputational damage.

8 Equalities, Community Impact and Human Rights:

There are no equalities or community impacts arising directly from this report. Polling stations have been fully
assessed and are deemed fully accessible for all members of the public.

9 Sustainability implications (including climate change, health and wellbeing, community safety)
There are no sustainability implications arising directly from this report.

10 Council infrastructure (including Health and Safety, HR/OD, assets and other resources)

There are no council infrastructure implications arising directly from this report.

11 Conclusions:

After consideration, the above recommendations are deemed appropriate amendments to the councils Polling
Districts & Polling Places Order.

Page 17



DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL

APPENDIX A

THE BOROUGH OF DACORUM (POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES) ORDER 2023

Claire Hamilton

The Forum

Hemel Hempstead
Herts

HP1 1DN

COMING INTO OPERATION -1 December 2023

Page 18

Chief Executive



DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPRESENTATION OF THE PEOPLE ACT 1983

THE BOROUGH OF DACORUM (POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES) ORDER 2023

DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL in exercise of the powers conferred by the Representation of the People Act 1983,

as amended, DO HEREBY ORDER as follows:

This Order shall come into operation on the 1 December 2023 provided that for the purpose of all proceedings
preliminary or relating to an election to be held on or after that day the said Order shall be deemed to have

come into operation forthwith.

The Electoral Registration Officer shall be directed to make such rearrangements or alterations as may be

necessary to the Register of Electors on account of the coming into operation of this Order.

From and after coming into operation of this Order the Parliamentary Constituency of Hemel Hempstead and
so much of that part of the South West Hertfordshire Constituency and Harpenden & Berkhamsted
Constituency within the Borough of Dacorum shall be divided into polling districts specified in columns (1) and
(2) of the Schedule annexed to this Order and more particularly described in Maps on the Dacorum Borough

Website.

For each Polling District constituted by this Order there is hereby designated a Polling Place situated at or near

the place specified in column (3) of the said Schedule.

As from coming into operation of this Order, the Borough of Dacorum (Polling Districts and Polling Places Order

2011) and any subsequent variation orders made to it shall be repealed.
The Chief Executive of the said Council shall maintain on the Dacorum Borough Council website a copy of the
Maps showing the boundaries of the Polling Districts and the situations of the Polling Places constituted and

designated by this Order.

This Order shall be cited as “The Borough of Dacorum (Polling Districts and Polling Places) Order 2023".

Page 19



The COMMON SEAL OF THE
DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL
was hereunto affixed this 1st
day of December 2023

in the presence of

AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

Page 20



Borough of Dacorum Polling Districts and Polling Places 2023

SCHEDULE OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES

HEMEL HEMPSTEAD CONSTITUENCY

(1)

(2)

(3)

Polling Areas comprised in Polling Districts Polling Place
District
Letters
AAA Hemel Hempstead Town (part) George Street Primary School
AAAA Hemel Hempstead Town (part) Highfield Hall, Bellgate
AABA Hemel Hempstead Town (part) Highfield Hall, Bellgate
AABB Hemel Hempstead Town (part) Carey Baptist Church, Marlowes
AAB Hemel Hempstead Town (part) Carey Baptist Church, Marlowes
ABA Highfield Ward (part) Highfield Hall, Bellgate
ABA Highfield Ward (part) Highfield Hall, Bellgate
ABB Highfield Ward (part) St Pauls Church Hall, Solway,
Hemel Hempstead
AC Adeyfield West Ward (part) Communal Room, Old House Road
AC Adeyfield West Ward (part) Communal Room, Old House Road
ACA Adeyfield West Ward (part) Adeyfield Community Centre,
Queen’s Square
ADA Adeyfield East Ward (part) Hobletts Manor Junior School,
Adeyfield Road
ADB Adeyfield East Ward (part) Adeyfield Community Centre,
Queen’s Square
AFA Apsley and Corner Hall Ward (part) Apsley Community Centre,
London Road
AFAA Apsley and Corner Hall Ward (part) Apsley Community Centre,
London Road
AFB Apsley and Corner Hall Ward (part) Two Waters Primary School,
Highridge Road
AFC Apsley and Corner Hall Ward (part) Tudor Primary School, Redwood
Drive
AFC Apsley and Corner Hall Ward (part) Tudor Primary School, Redwood
Drive
AGA Boxmoor Ward (part) St Francis Parish Hall, Glenview
Road
AGB Boxmoor Ward (part) Camelot RFC, Chaulden Lane
AGBA Boxmoor Ward (part) Hemel Hempstead Methodist

Church

Page 21




AGC Boxmoor Ward (part) South Hill Centre
AHA Chaulden and Warners End Ward (part) | Warners End Community Centre,
Stoneycroft
AHA Chaulden and Warners End Ward (part) | Warners End Community Centre,
Stoneycroft
AHB Chaulden and Warners End Ward (part) | Gt Sturgess Communal Hall, Great
Sturgess Road, HH
AHC Chaulden and Warners End Ward (part) Chaulden Community Centre,
Long Chaulden
Al Gadebridge Ward Gadebridge Community Centre,
Rossgate, Galley Hill
Al Gadebridge Ward Gadebridge Community Centre,
Rossgate, Galley Hill
ALA Leverstock Green Ward (part) Parish Hall, Ritcroft Street, Hemel
Hempstead
ALB Leverstock Green Ward (part) Leverstock Green Village Hall,
Village Centre
ALB Leverstock Green Ward (part) Leverstock Green Village Hall,
Village Centre
ALC Leverstock Green Ward (part) Hobbs Hill Wood Primary School,
Peascroft Road
ALCA Leverstock Green Ward (part) Hobbs Hill Wood Primary School,
Peascroft Road
AMA Woodhall Farm Ward (part) Woodhall Farm Community
Centre, Datchet Close
AMB Woodhall Farm Ward (part) Brockswood Primary School,
Shenley Road
AMB Woodhall Farm Ward (part) Brockswood Primary School,
Shenley Road
APA Grovehill Ward (part) Grove Hill Community Centre,
Henry Wells Square
APA Grovehill Ward (part) Grove Hill Community Centre,
Henry Wells Square
APAA Grovehill Ward (part) Grove Hill Community Centre,
Henry Wells Square
APB Grovehill Ward (part) St Thomas Indian Orthodox
Church, St Agnells Lane, Hemel
Hempstead
AQA Bennetts End Ward (part) Bennetts End Community Centre
AQB Bennetts End Ward (part) Belswains JM School, Barnfield
AQC Bennetts End Ward (part) Belmont Baptist Church Hall,

Belmont Road

laLe)
> L4




BA Nash Mills Ward (part) Nash Mills Village Hall, 4 Lower
Road
BA Nash Mills Ward (part) Nash Mills Village Hall, 4 Lower
Road
BAA Nash Mills Ward (part) Nash Mills Village Hall, 4 Lower
Road
LA Bovingdon , Flaunden and Chipperfield The Memorial Hall, High Street,
Ward (part) (Bovingdon Parish) Bovingdon
LA Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield The Memorial Hall, High Street,
Ward (part) (Bovingdon Parish) Bovingdon
LB Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield The Village Hall, Flaunden
Ward (part) (Flaunden Parish)
LC Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield Chipperfield Village Hall, The
Ward (part) (Chipperfield Parish) Common
LD Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield Bourne End Village Hall
Ward (part)
LE Bovingdon, Flaunden and Chipperfield The Boxmoor Trust Centre

Ward (part)

2. HARPENDEN AND BERKHAMSTED CONSTITUENCY

EAA Aldbury and Wigginton Ward (Aldbury Aldbury Memorial Hall
Parish East Ward)
EAB Aldbury and Wigginton Ward (Aldbury The Iron Room, Tring Station
Parish West Ward)
EB Aldbury and Wigginton Ward St Bartholomews Church Hall
(Wigginton Parish)
FA Ashridge Ward (part) (Little Gaddesden The Sports Pavilion, Little
Parish) Gaddesden
FB Ashridge Ward (part) (Nettleden with Potten End Village Hall
Potten End Parish)
KAA Berkhamsted West Ward (part) Lagley Hall, Douglas Gardens
Berkhamsted Parish West Ward (part)
KAB Berkhamsted West Ward (part) All Saints’ Church Hall, Shrublands
Berkhamsted Parish West Ward (part) Road
KAB Berkhamsted West Ward (part) All Saints’ Church Hall, Shrublands
Berkhamsted Parish West Ward (part) Road
KBA Berkhamsted Castle Ward (part) Bridgewater Middle School, Bridle
Berkhamsted Parish Castle Ward (part) Way
KBB Berkhamsted Castle Ward (part) Berkhamsted Lawn Tennis and

Berkhamsted Parish Castle Ward (part)

Squash Rackets Club, Lower Kings
Road, Berkhamsted

Page 23




KBC Berkhamsted Castle Ward (part) Court House, Church Lane
Berkhamsted Parish Castle Ward (part)
KCA Berkhamsted East Ward (part) Evangelical Free Church Hall, Kings
Berkhamsted Parish East Ward (part) Road
KCB Berkhamsted East Ward (part) Swing Gate First School, Swing
Berkhamsted Parish East Ward (part) Gate Lane
JA Northchurch Ward (Northchurch Parish) Northchurch Social Centre, Bell
Lane
DAA Tring East Ward (Tring Parish Dunsley Tring Scout Hall, Adjacent to 35
Ward) Grove Road, Tring
DBAA Tring Central Ward (part) (Tring Parish Nora Grace Hall,
Bunstrux Ward — part) Faversham Close, Tring
DBBB Tring Central Ward (part) (Tring Parish | Tring Community Centre, Silk Mill
Bunstrux Ward — part) Way
DBCC Tring Central Ward (part) (Tring Parish New Mill Baptist Church, New
Bunstrux Ward — part) Road, New Mill
DCAA Tring West and Rural Ward (part) (Tring Goldfield Infants School,
Parish Miswell Ward — part) Christchurch Road
DCBB Tring West and Rural Ward (part) (Tring Roman Catholic Church Hall,
Parish Miswell Ward — part) Langdon Street
DDAA Tring West and Rural Ward (part) (Tring Long Marston Victory Hall
Rural Parish — part)
DDBB Tring West and Rural Ward (part) (Tring Wilstone Village Hall
Rural Parish — part)
GA Watling Ward (Flamstead Parish) The Methodist Church Hall,
Trowley Hill Road
GB Watling Ward (Markyate Parish) Markyate Village Hall, Cavendish
Road
GB Watling Ward (Markyate Parish) Markyate Village Hall, Cavendish
Road
GCA Watling Ward (Great Gaddesden Parish Great Gaddesden Parish Hall
— Part)
GCB Watling Ward (Great Gaddesden Parish | Gaddesden Row Community Hall

— Part)

3. SOUTH WEST HERTS CONSTITUENCY

(1)
Polling
District
Letters

(2)
Areas comprised in Polling Districts and
Reference

(3)

Polling Place

Page 24




PA Kings Langley Ward (Kings Langley The Community Centre, Rucklers
Parish North Ward) Lane

PB Kings Langley Ward (Kings Langley All Saints Church Hall, Church
Parish South Ward) Lane

PB Kings Langley Ward (Kings Langley All Saints Church Hall, Church
Parish South Ward) Lane

PC Kings Langley Ward (Kings Langley Methodist Church Hall,

Parish Central Ward)

Hempstead Road

Page 25




	Agenda
	5 Revised Parliamentary Boundaries
	6 Polling District & Polling Place review
	7 Polling Place Order

